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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GF Scots) Limited
Directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2017

The directors preseat their report and the audited financial statements of J.P. Morgan Gl (GP Scots) Limited for the |
year ended 31 December 2017.

Effective 4 July 2017, J.P. Morgan GMIF {GP Scots) Limited changed its rame to J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions relating to small companies within Part 15 of
the Companies Act 2006. The Company has taken advantage of the available exemption from presenting a strategic
report conferred by this.

Principal activities
The principal activity of J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited {"the Company") is to act as general partner to feeder

limited partnerships. The feeder limited partners invest in a limited partnership which, in tumn, invests in maritime and
maritime related investments. :

Review of business
The directors consider that the profit for the financial year and the financial position at the end of the year were
satisfactory. '

The directors of the Company do not anticipate changes in the activities of the Company for the foreseeable future.

Resuits and dividends

The p}oﬁt on ordinary activities before taxation was $200 (2016: $200) and the profit for the financial year and total
comprehensive income for the year was $200 (2016: $200). The accumulated profit for the financial year was $200
{2016: $200) and has been transferred to reserves.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2016: $Nif).

Directors

The names of the directors who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements are
listed on page 1.
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2017

Principal risks and uncertainties

Whilst management of the Company’s risks and u.nceltainﬁes is integrated with that of Ii’Morgan Chase & Co. (the
“Firm"} and its associated subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group") of which the Company is part, the Company also
manages its risks at a legal entity levcl.

The principal risks and uncertainties relating to the Group as a whole are discussed within the Groub's annual report
(which does not form part of this report). Those relating specifically to the Company itself are discussed in the
Financial risk management section of this report.

Financial risk management

Risk management is an inherent part of the business activities of the Group of which the Company is a part. The
Coampany has adopted the same risk management policies and procedures as the Group as a whole. The Company's risk
management framework and governance structure are intended to provide comprehensive controls and ongoing
management of its major risks. The-Company exercises oversight through the Board of Directors.

The Company's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks, the most significant of which are credit risk,
operational risk and foreign exchange risk.

An overview of the key. aspects of risk management and the use of financial instruments is provided below. A more
detailed description of the policies and processes adopted by all Group companies may be found within the JPMorgan
Chase & Co, annual report. '

Credit risk

The Company complies with Group policies which require monthly monitoring and reporting of exposures to all
financial institutions, These exposures are subject to a Group concentration limit and are reviewed annually by the

relevant risk committees.

Operational rigk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes or systems, human factors or extemal ’
events. To monitor and control operating risk, the Group and the Company maintain a system of comprehensive
policies and a control framework designed to provide a well-controlled operational environment and to monitor and
record any control failures.
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2017 '

Statement of directois’ responsibilities :
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law the directors
have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™, and applicable law).
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. Tn
preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them corisisten;ly;

« state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed, subject to

any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent- and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company wn]l
continue in business.

The directors are mpoﬁsii:le for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable thém to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,

. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for

the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of information to the auditors
Each of the persons wha is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

(1) so far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit mfon'natlon of which the Company's auditors are
unaware; and

(2) each director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himselffherself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provi'sions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2017

Liability insurance for directors .
As permitted by Section 233 of the Companies Act 2006, the directors of the Company are covered for insurance
purposes by the Group's insurance maintained at a consolidated level. .

Third party indemnities
An indemnity is provided to the directors of the Company under the by-laws of jPMorgan Chase & Co. against
liabilities and associated costs which they could incur in the course of their duties 10 the Company. The indemnity was

in force during the financial year and also at the date of approval of these financial statements and a copy of the
by-laws of JPMorgan Chase & Co. is kept at the registered office of the Company, :

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Approved by the board on 25 June 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

25/06/20\&

S Date
R A Crombie

Director
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Independent Auditor's Report to the memebers of J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited’s financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its profit for the year

then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report (the “Anﬁual Report™), which comprise:
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017; the profit and loss account and the statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the. Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements,

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the followirig matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you
when:

« the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of
at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this stalement is not a guarantee as to the
company’s ability to continue as a going concem.
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GF Scots) Limited - formerily J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the memebers of J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises atl of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors® report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other infermation and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing

50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge:
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency

or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement

of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have.
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors’ report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act
2006 have been included.

Based on the responsnbnlmes described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) reqmre us
also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Dlreclors report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 December 2017 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance
with applicable tegal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the Directors’ report.

Responsibilities for the financia! statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary 1o enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. '

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the memebers of J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited

Auditors ' responsibilities jor the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as & whole are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our epinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponkibiImes This description forms part of our auditors’ report ‘

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

= gertain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Entitlement to exemptions

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the directors were not entitled to
take advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a strategic report. We have no exceptions to report
arising from this responsibility. .

.....................................

Jonathan Wiseman (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

Date:)&]une 2018
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2017

. 2017 2016
Note . J s

Turnover ' - 2 200 200
Operating profit ‘ 200 200
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation - 200 200
Tax on profit on ordinary activities ' . 4 - .
Profit for the financial year and total comprehensive income ) .

10 200 200

for the year

All amounts relate to continuing operations.

There is no material difference between the profits repoﬁed above and the results on an unmodified historical cost
basis. ’

The notes on pages 12 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2017

2017 20i6

Note s $
Current asseis . . . .
Debtors . ’ 7 2,360 2,160
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year : 3 (1,005) (1,005)
Net current assets 1,355 1,155
Capital and reserves . .
Called up share capital 9 100 100
Profit and loss account 10 1,255 1,055
Total shareholder's funds _ 1 - 1,355 1,155

" The financial statements on pages 9 o 15 were approved by the board of directors on 25 June 2018 and signed on its
behalf by: '

25706/ 20(&

Director

Company registered number: SC371111

The notes on pages 12 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2017

Total
Called up sh?trel Profit and I_o:i shareholder's -
capita accou fands
. s 5 5
At 1 January 2016 100 855 955
!’raﬁt for the financial year and total comprehensive N 200 200
income for the year
At 31 December 2016 100 1,055 1,155
?ruf':t for the financial year and total comprehensive ) 200 200
income for the year

At 31 December 2017 100 1,255 1,355

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

» Called up share capital - nominal value of share capital subscribed for.
+ Profit and loss account - aii other net gains and Josses and transactions with owners (e.g. dividends) not recognised
elsewhere,

The notes on pages 12 to 15 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Accounting policies .

The Company is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated and domiciled in Scotland. The address of its
registered office is 50 Lothian Road, Festival Squre, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9WJ.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK Financial Reporting Standard 100 “Application of
Financial Reporting Requirements” and Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The policies
have been consistently applied 1o all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financizl statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, using the historical cost convention, and in accordance with the Companies Act
2006.

Disclosure exemptions adopted:

In preparing these financial statements the Company has taken advantage of disclosure exemptions conferred by FRS
101. Therefore these financial statements do not include:

certain comparative information as otherwise required by EU endorsed IFRS;

certain disclosures regarding the Company’s capital;

a statement of cash flows;

the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted;

the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnel; and

disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly owned members of the group headed by JPMorgan Chase
& Co. .

* @& 4 L I

The financia) statements of JPMorgan Chase & Co. can be obtained as described in note 12.

Income and expenditure

'Income and expenditure are recognised on an accruals basns Income is made up solely of profit share from the Limited

Partnership.,

Judgements and key areas of estimation uncertainty

Due to the nature of business undertaken by the Company, no significant acmunhng estimates on judgements were
required in preparation of these financial statements.

Functional and presentational currency

ltems included in the financial statements, are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in US Dollar, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency and the currency in which the majority of the Cornpanys revenue
streams, assets, liabilities and funding is denominated.
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J. P. Morgan Gl (GP Scots) lelted formerly J.P: Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Lmuted

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Turnover

i Tumover -comprises a prof' t share (General Partner's Share} receivable frol Global Mantlme investor Fund Feeder

* LP and Global Maritime Investor Fund Intermediate LP. The Company has-only one class of business and operates_

mnm!y in the United l(mgdom

Ad_ministrliive expenses

. Auditors’ remuneration was $9, 756 {2016: $8,562),. whoily for audit services.' All expenses, including audit
“remuneration costs have been bome by Group undertakmgs L

Tax on profit on ordinary activities
2017 - - 2016

- Current tax: | ' - o L A R -

_ Current tax on profits for the year ' : ) . T S - -

’_l‘otalcnrrept tax . o . . - - -

Factors affecting-tax charge for year

The tax. charge for the year is-lower (2016: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK t'or the year ended

" 31 December 2017 of 19.25% (20!6 20.00%). The differences are explained below:.

SRR ‘ ‘ Cam7 - 'zm
. . . s ) $
Prof ton ordmary actlvmes béfore taxation - . ' ' ‘ .200 _‘ . - 200,
: Tat on prefit-on ordinary activities at standard UK rate of 19 25% (20 I6 209%) o 38 ' 40
2 Effects of: 4
Effects of group relieflothér reliefs . _ ) oy @

Total tax charge. - to. _ ‘ - .

. The tax rate for the cur;em year differs to the prlor year due to changes in the Uk. corporatmn tax rate which decreased
from 20%to 19% from 1 April 2017. ‘ .

'Changes to the UK corporation 'tax. rates were substannvely enacted as part of Finance Bill 2016 (on 6 September o

2016) These include. rcductlons to the main rate to reduce the rate to I'J% from 1 April 2020,

'Employee information

The Company had no employees durlng the year (20I6 ml)
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Directors' emoluments

The directors did not receive any remuneration from the Company (2016: $nil). Remuneration for their services is

provided elsewhere in the Group, and it is not possible to apportion the emount specific to this entity.

Debtors
2017 2016
5 s
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 2,360 2,160
2,360 2,160
Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2017 2016
5 $
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 1,005 1,005
Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand.
Called up share capital
2017 2016
s s
Authorised, allotted and fully paid
100 (2016: 100) ordinary shares of $1 each _ 100 100
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J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited - formerly J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Reconciliation of movement in reserves

Balance at 1 January 2016
Profit for the financial year and total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 20 1‘6

—

Profit for the financial year and total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2017

Reconciliation of movements in shareholder's funds

Shareholder's funds brought forward

-Profit for the financial year and total comprehensive income for the year

12

Shareholder's funds carried forward

Ultimate parent undertaking

Profit and loss

account
H
855
200
1,055
200
1,255
2017 2016
s 5
1,155 955
200 200
1,355 1,155

The immediate parent undertaking and controlling party is JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings (Lukembourg)
-Sarl.

The parent company of the largest group for which consolidated financial statements are prepared, and whom the
directors regard as the ultimate holding company, is JPMorgan Chase & Co. which is incorporated in the United States

of America.

The consolidated financial statements of JPMorgan Chase & Co. are available to the public and may be obtained from

the Company's registered office at:

The Company Secretary
25 Bank Street

Canary Wharf

London

El4 5P
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General Partner’s Report 2017

The Board of Directors of the General Partner presents its Annual Report and the audited financial statements of Global Maritime
Investment Fund Intermediate LP (formerly *1.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP”} for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

Principal activities

The Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP (formerly “J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate
LP") (the “Intermediate Partnership™) has been established to invest in Global Maritime Investment Fund LP (the “Fund
Partnership™) (formerly “J.P, Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund LP”) for the purpose of income generation and capital
appreciation.

As the activity of the Intermediate Partnership is directly linked to the activity of the Fund Partnership, the General Partner's report
reflects the activities of the underlying Fund Partnership.

Business review and future development

Investments
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership, through its subsidiaries and joint ventures, took delivery of four
vessels {(one dry bulk carrier, one containership vessel and two car carriers).

During the course of the year, the Fund Partnership, through its subsidiaries, disposed of four containership vessels.

As at December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership, through its subsidiaries and joint ventures, owned a total of fifty-eight operating
vessels, (thirty-six dry bulk carriers, thirteen containership vessels, seven car carriers and two tankers) and shipbuilding contracts
for the construction of five vessels (three containership vessels and two dry bulk carriers), which are expected to be delivered in
2018.

As at December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership had commitments of approximately USD3(.51 million in relation to the above
mentioned joint ventures and shipbuilding contracts (December 31, 2016; USD110.62 million). These commitments are parily
offset by the Fund Partnership’s indirect share of undrawn credit facilities secured by the relevant joint ventures of USD7.63 million
(December 31, 2016: USDS8.75 million).

Results

Investment and dividend income received
During the year, the Fund Partnership received USD3.35 million of dividend income from its subsidiary Proteus Holding Limited
(2016: USDO.55 million of dividend income from Proteus Holding Limited.)

Fair value movements of investments
During the year, the Fund Partnership’s investments increased in value by USD81.60 million (2016: USD121.65 million decrease
in value). This increase in value was mainly attributable to unrealised gains on vessels and shipbuilding contracts.

Net result

The net result for the year, after taking into account the dividend income received of USD3.35 million (2016: USDO0.55 million),
guarantee fee income of USDQ.08 million (2016: USD0.17 million), fair value gain on investments of USD81.60 million (2016:
loss of USD121.65 million), the general partner share of USD7.53 million (2016: USD7.89 million) and other fund operating and
finance costs of USD1.73 million (2016: USD4.12 million) is a profit of USD75.78 million (December 31, 2016: loss of USD132.94
million). The Intermediate Partnership’s proportion of this profit is USD46.74 million (December 31, 2016: losses of USD82.40
million).

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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General Partnet’s Report (continued) 2017

Capital calls

During the year, the Fund Partnership made three capital calls from its limited partners amounting to USD54.50 million (2016:
USD133.05 million). The purpose of these capital calls was to repay amounts previously drawn from the Fund Partnership’s credit
facility and to fund the completion of vessel investments. The Intermediate Partnership’s contribution to these capital calls was
USD33.72 million (2016: USD82.32 million).

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Refer to Note 3 in the notes to the financial statements for details on financial risk management objectives and policies.

Events after the balance sheet date
Refer to Note 14 in the notes to the financial statements for details on events after the balance sheet date.

Statement of Gencral Partner's responsibilitics in respect of the Annual Report and the audited financial statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the General Partner’s Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

UK Company law requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the General
Partner has prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted
by the European Union.

Under UK Company law, the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Intermediate Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Intermediate Partnership for
that year. In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the EU have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Intermediate Partnership
will continue in business.

Tl Genoral Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Intermediate
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Intermediate Partnership
amd enable it W0 ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applicd to qualifying partnerships by
the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008, The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Intermediate
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Intermediate Partnership has applied the Investment Entities amendment to IFRS 10 *Consolidated Financial Statements’. Since
the Intermediate Partnership is an investment entity under the standard, it is exempt from consolidating underlying subsidiaries and
instead it is required to account for these subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. Refer to Notes 2A, 2C and 4.

The Intermediate Partnership has taken advantage of the small companies exemption and has not presented a strategic report.

The financial statements are made available through FIS Data Exchange, a third party hosted site. The maintenance and integrity of
the FIS Data Exchange site is the responsibility of the General Partner; the work carried out by the auditor does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditor accepts no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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Stulewent of General Partner’s responsibilitics in respect of the Annual Report and the audited financial statements
(continued)

Legislation in the United Kingdom and Iicland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from

legislation in other jurisdictions.

In accordance with Section 418 of Companies Act 2006, the General Partner report shall include a statement, in the case of each
director in office at the date the General Partner report is approved, that:

(a) so far as each director of the General Partner is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Intermediate
Partnership’s auditor is unaware; and

)] each director of the General Partner has taken all the steps that he cught to have taken as a director in order to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Intermediate Partnership’s auditor is aware of that
information.

Independent Auditors

The General Partner confirms that so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Intermediate Partnership’s
auditors are unaware, and it has taken all the steps that it ought to have taken as a General Partner in order to make itself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Intermediate Partnership’s auditor is aware of that information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as the Independent Auditors.

By order of the General Partner

March 28, 2018

Fd@glguaﬁalf of 1.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited Date
(formerly “J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited™)
Director

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate I.P
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Independent auditors’ report to the partners of Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP’s financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at December 31, 2017 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

»  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships
by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Financial Statements (the “Annual Report™), which comprise: the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017; the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the
statement of changes in net assets attributable to Limited Partners for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements,
which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the aundit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

s the general partner’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

+ the general partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for
a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the qualifying
partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The general partner is responsiblc for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements docs not eover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the oxtent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statoments or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Gencral Partner’s Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006
as applied to qualifying partnerships have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below.

General Partrer's Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the General Partner’s Report for
the year ended Deceinber 31, 2017 is consistent with the (inancial statements and lias been prepued in accurdance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment ohtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstatements in the General Partner’s Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the general partner for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner’s responsibilities set out on page 4, the general partner is responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. The general partner is also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepaciog the finaucial statements, the general partner is responsible for assessing the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the general partner either intends to liquidate the qualifying partnership or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audir of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to isswe an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www. frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the partners of the qualifying partnership as a body in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required 1o report to you if, in our opinion:

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

e adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the qualifying partnership, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returmns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Entitlement to exemptions
Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the general

partner were nol entitled (o take advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a siralegic report. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Sandra Dowlmg (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

2.9 March 2018

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2017
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Notes $ 000s $ 000s
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial asset:
Available for sale financial asset 4 313,970 233,508
Total non-current assets 313,970 233,508
Current assets
Amounts due from limited partner 5 21 21
Cash and cash equivalents 6 5 7
Total current assets 26 28
Total assets 313,996 233,536
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Due to affiliates 7 104 94
Accrued expenses 8 14 11
Total current liabilities 118 105
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to the
limited partner) 118 105
Net assets attributable to the limited partner 313,878 233,431
Total liabilities 313,996 233,536

The financial statements were approved by the General Partner on March 28, 2018 and signed on its behalf by

]

March 28, 2018

Director Date

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate L
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Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Notes $ 000s $ 000s
Income - -
Expenses
Operating expenses 9 (14) (1)
Operating loss for the year (14) (11)
Finance costs 10 )] -
Net loss for the year (15) (11)
Other comprehensive profit/(loss):
Net change in fair value of available for sale financial asset 46,742 (82,403)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year 46,727 (82,414)
Net result for the year
Adttributable to limited pariner (15) (11)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year
Attributable to limited partner 46,727 (82,414)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
Statement of Changes in Equity and Net Assets attributable to the limited partner

For the year ended December 31, 2017
All amounts in $ 000s

Balance as at January 1, 2017

Advance contributions

Distributions

Net result for the year
Other comprehensive profit

Net change in fair value of available for sale
financial asset

Balance as at December 31, 2017

Balance as at January 1, 2016
Advance contributions
Distributions

Net result for the year

Other comprehensive loss
Net change in fair value of available for sale
financial asset

Balance as at December 11, 2016

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Capital Advance Retained Other
contribution  contribution earnings reserves Total
48 412,331 N (178,871) 233431
- 33,720 - - 33,720
- - (15) - (15)
- - - 46,742 46,742
48 446,051 (92) (132,129) 313,878

Capital Advance Retained Other
contribution _ contribution earnings reserves Total
48 330,011 (66) (96,468) 233,525
- 82,320 - - 82,320
] ) an - an
- - - (82,403) (82,403)
48 412,331 (77) (178,871) 233,431
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Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss for the year
Adjustments in relation to:

Finance costs
Changes in working capital

Net Cash used in operating activities before finance costs

Finance costs paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in available for sale financial asset

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Advance contribution from the limited partner

Net cash generated by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Notes

10
12

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
$ 000s $ 000s

(15) (11)

1 -

13 10

n (1)

0)) -

2) L

(33,720) (82,320}
(33,720) (82,320)
33,720 82,320
33,720 82,320

(2) (43

7 8

5 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Intermediate Partnership

2017

1. General information

Global Maritime Investment Fund (the “Fund”™) comprises the following:

Fund entity:

Global Maritime Investment Fund LP
(“Fund Partnership™)

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP

(“Feeder Partnership”™)

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate

LP (“Intermediate Partnership™)

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder, LI.C

("Feeder LLC”)

Delaware

60 Victoria Embankment, London,

50 Lothian Road, Festival Square,

50 Lothian Road, Festival Square,

2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400,

19808,

Date of Jurisdiction: Registered office:
registration:
April 26, 2010 England

ECA4Y 0JP, England
April 15, 2010 Scotland

Edinburgh, EH3 9W], Scotland
April 15, 2010 Scotland

Edinburgh, EH3 9W]I, Scotland
April 7, 2010 Delaware

Wilmington,

Usa

In accordance with the requirements of the Volcker rule during the year, the following entities have been renamed:

Date of name

Feeder, LLC

Name Former name

change
Global Maritime Investment Fund LP | J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund LP 20th July, 2017
Global Maritime Investment  Fund J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP 19th July, 2017
Feeder LP
Global Maritime  Investment Fund | ; 5 \goroan Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder, LLC 3rd July, 2017

Global Maritime Investment Fund
Intermediate LP

J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP

191h July, 2017

J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited

J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots)Limited

3rd July, 2017

J_P. Morgan G1 (GP) Limited

J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP) Limited

3rd July, 2017

JPMAM G1 CIPLP

J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Cayman CIP, LP

17th July, 2017

The Fund is closed-ended and limited partners may participate in the Fund by purchasing (i) interests directly in the Fund
Partnership; (ii) limited liability company interests in the Feeder LLC which invests in the Fund Partnership via the Intermediate

Partnership; (iit) limited partnership interests in the Feeder Partnership.

The sole purpose of this Intermediate Partnership is to acquire interests in the Fund Partnership. As at December 31, 2017, the Fund
had raised capital commitments totalling USD780.33 million (December 31, 2016: USD780.33 million), of which USD482.80

million (December 31, 2016: USD482.80 million) related to the Intermediate Partnership.

The Intermediate Partnership’s founder Limited Partner, JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings (Luxembourg) S.4r.], has made a
capital contribution to the Intermediate Partnership amounting to USD100 and is entitled to receive a profit share of USD100 for
each calendar year it has been a limited partner, from the initial closing date to the termination of the Fund.

IPMAM G1 CIP LP (*Carried Interest Partnership™) and its limited partners participate in the Fund as a limited partner with
commitments of USD22.73 million to the Fund Partnership (December 31, 2016: USD22.73 million).

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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L General information (continued)

The Intermediate Partnership’s profits and losses are allocated to the limited partner pro rata to its indirect commitments in the Fund
Partnership. The Fund Partnership’s profits and losses are allocated to the limited partner, pro-rata on its commitments.

Distributions are made to the limited partners on the same basis of allocation as that which would have applied had that limited
partner been admitted directly to the Fund Partnership, subject to any additional specific Intermediate Partnership expenses,
Intermediate Partnership limited founder partner profit share and Intermediate Partnership General Partner profit share,

Final closing

The Fund’s final closing date was December 9, 2011. The total commitments on the final closing date amounted to USD780.33
million.

Investment strategy

The purpose of the Fund is to invest in vessels in any part of the world. The Fund will invest through a variety of different investment
methods, including, without limitation, by directly or indirectly, (i) acquiring shares or other ownership units in an existing or newly
formed holding company which owns one or more vessels; (ii) investing in listed and unlisted equity or debt securities {including
shares, bonds and other securities) of an entity that owns one or more vessels (including in an entity at a pre-IPO stage or a listed
entity which the Fund seeks to take private); or (iii) making, refinancing or acquiring a loan (including a non-performing loan)
secured by one or more vessels,

The Fund will invest, directly or indirectly, in vessels in the bulker sector (including, without limitation, roll-onfroll-off vessels),
the tanker sector (including, without limitation, erude, product, chemical and liquid petroleum gas carricrs and ligueficd natural gas
carriers (“LNG vessels”) and the containership sector (together bulker tanker containership vessels (“BTC vessels”) and, subject to
the investment guidelines included in the Limited Partnership Agreement (“LPA”), may invest in offshore supply vessels, barges,
car carrier vessels and vessels in other sectors (“Non-BTC vessels™).

Investment period

The Fund’s investment period commenced on the initial closing date (June 10, 2010) and ended on December 9, 2014, the third
anniversary of the final closing date {(December 9, 2011).

Fund termination

The Fund shall terminate on the sixth anniversary of the end of the investment peried plus an additional two consecutive one- year
periods, at the election of the Operator with prior approval of the Fund limited pariners.

Drawdowns
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership drew down USD54.50 million (December 31, 2016: USD133.05
million) from the limited partners to repay amounts previously drawn from the Fund Partnership’s credit facility and for the

completion of vessel investments. The Intermediate Partnership’s contribution to the capital call amounted to USD33.72 million
(December 31, 2016: USD82.32 million).

Distributions
In accordance with the Fund Partnership’s LPA, distributions are made to the Fund Partnership’s limited partners as follows:
(a) First 100% to the General Pariner until the General Partner has received the General Partner’s Share;

(b) Second, 100% to the limited partners until they have received cumulative distributions equal to the aggregate of : (i) their
advance contributions used to fund the vessel investment in respect of which distributions are being made and all other

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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1. General information (continued)
Distributions (continued}

realised investments, plus their proportionate share of any write-downs of unrealised vessel investments, as of that time;
and (ii) the advance contributions used to fund all Fund Partnership expenses and loans in respect of the General Partner’s
share allocated to the investments included in (i);

(c) 100% to the limited partners until the cumulative distributions to the limited partners under this paragraph (c) and
paragraphs (d) and (e) equal the 9% preferred return, compounded annually;

(d) 60% to the Carried Interest Partner and 40% to the limited partners until the Carried Interest Partner has received 20% of
the aggregate distributions under paragraph (c) and this paragraph (d); and

(¢) 80% to the limited partners and 20% to the Carried Interest Partner,

As at December 31, 2017, the inception to date distributions from the Fund Partnership to its limited partners amounted to USD62.00
million (December 31, 2016: USD62.00 million). The Intermediate Partnership’s share of these distributions was USD38.36 million
(December 31, 2016: USD38.36 million). The Intermediate Partnership did not receive any distributions from the Fund Partnership
during the year ended December 31, 2017 and consequently it did not make any distributions to its limited partner. (December 31,
2016: USD Nil)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Intermediate Partnership have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulation 2008.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention modified for the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Fund Partnership and Intermediate Partnership meet the definition of an investment entity as defined by IFRS 10 and the
Intermediate Partnership is required to account for the investment in the Fund Partnership at fair value of the available for sale
financial asset. These separate financial statements are the only financial statements presented by the Intermediate Partnership.
Refer to Note 2C.

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Intermediate Partnership’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions or estimates are
significant to financial statements are disclosed in Note 2G below.

B. Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective January 1, 2017 and adopted by the Intermediate Partnership

Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ became effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. These
amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

There are no standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning January 1, 2017 that have not been adopted.

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

B. Changes in accounting policy and discilosures (continued)

i. Standards, amendments and interpretations effective for the financial year beginning January 1, 2017 and adopted
early

There are no standards, interpretations or amendments (o existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning January 1, 2017 that have been adopted early.

.y

il Standards, amendments and interpretations that are in issue but not effective for the financial year beginning
January 1, 2017 and not adopted early

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and reissued in October 2010. It replaces the parts of IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’ that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial
assets to be classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised cost. The
determination is made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the
IAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch. As the investment will continue to be measured at fair value, the adoption of this standard is
not expected to have any other material impact on the financial statements of the Intermediate Partnership. The Intermediate
Partnership adopted IFRS 9 in the accounting period beginning January 1, 2018.

Amendment to IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. These amendments comprise clarifications of the guidance on
identifying performance obligations, accounting for licences of intellectual property and the principal versus agent assessment
(gross versus net revenue presentation). IFRS 15 is a converged standard from the IASB and FASB on revenue recognition. The
standard will improve the financial reporiing of revenue and improve comparability of the top line in financial statements globally.
Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRS. This standard is not expected to have a material impact on the presentation of financial statements of the
Intermediate Partnership,

IFRS 16 “Leases’ now requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for
virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the
IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts),
lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact
negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under IFRS 16 a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The standard includes two recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of ’low-value’ assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will
be also required to remeasure the lease lability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. IFRS 16 also
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17, IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2019. Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies IFRS 15. This standard is not expected
to have material effect on the presentation of financial statements of the Intermediate Partnership.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

B. Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

ii. Standards, amendments and interpretations that are in issue but not effective for the financial year beginning
January 1, 2017 and not adopted early (continued)

A number of other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations were effective for annual periods beginning after
January 1, 2017 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. The General Partner does not expect these to
have a material effect on the financial statements of the Intermediate Partnership.

The General Partner does not expect the adoption of the standards, amendments and interpretations that are in issue but not yet
effective listed above will have a material impact on the Intermediate Partnership’s financial statoments in future periods. Beyond
the information above, it is not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards until a detailed review has
been completed.

C. Investment Entity

The Intermediate Partnership, is closed-ended, has one investor and holds multiple investments through the Fund Partnership. Net
assets attributable to the limited partner are classified as a financial liability, due to a finite life and contractual payment provisions
of the limited partners within the Fund Partnership’s LPA. Net assets attributable to limited partner’s capital are carried at amortised
cost and are classified as debt in accordance with IAS 32. The limited partner’s interests are exposed to variable returns from
changes in the fair value of the Fund’s net assets.

The Intermediate Partnership has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity per IFRS 10 as the following conditions
exist:

i) The Intermediate Partnership, which is closed end, has obtained funds for the purpose of providing investors with
investment management services.

i} The Intermediate Partnership’s business purpose, which was communicated directly to investors, is investing solely
for returns from capital appreciation and investment income, through the use of a Master-Feeder structure.

iii) The performance of investments made through the subsidiaries of the Fund Partnership are measured and evaluated
on a fair value basis.

iv) The investor’s ownership interests in the Intermediate Partnership is in the form of capital and advance contributions.

The investor is exposed to variable returns from changes in the fair value of the Intermediate Partnership’s net assets.

D. Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentational currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Intermediate Partnership are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Intermediate Partnership operates (the “functional currency”).

The financial statements are presented in US Dollars (USD or $), which is the Intermediate Partnership’s functional and
presentational currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at
the Statement of Financial Position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

When gains or losses on a non-monetary item are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, the exchange component of
that gain or [oss shall be recognised directly in other comprehensive income. Conversely when gains or losses on a non-monetary
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

D. Foreign currency translation (continued)

item are recognised directly in the profit or loss within the Statement of Comprehensive Inoome, the exchange component of that
gain or loss shall be recognised in the profit or loss within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

E. Receivables
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value.
F. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents can comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term investments in an active
market with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts.

G. Use of significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities af the date of the financial statements and the reported
amonnts of income, expenses and unrealised gains or losses during the reporting perind. Actuoal results could differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors. These include
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Intermediate Parinership makes estimates and assumptions concerning:

1) fair value of available for sale financial asset,

i) the treatment of the investment in the Fund Partnership as an available for sale financial asset,
i) the going concern of the Intermediate Partnership, and

iv) use of investment entity accounting as defined by IFRS 10.

The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
H. Available for sale financial asset

All investments are initially recognised at cost, being fair value of the consideration given and including acquisition charges
associated with the investment. Given the nature of the investment into the Fund Partnership, it is classified as available for sale
financial asset.

After initial recognition, investments which are classified as available for sale financial asset are measured at fair value. Changes
in the fair value are recognised directly in the other comprehensive income and allocated to net assets attributable to tho limited
partner until the investment is derecognised. At this time, the cumulative pain or loss previously recognised is transferred to the
profit and loss within the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assot or paid
1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Refer to Note 3B in the Fund
Partnership financial statements for further details on the fair valuation policy of the investments.

The investment in the Fund Partnership consists of non marketable, limited partnership interests. The cost basis of the investment
held by the Intermediate Partnership includes all amounts contributed to the Fund Partnership. The fair value of investments
represents the cost of the investment adjusted for the Tntermediate Partnership’s allocated share of invesrment income, expenses,
realised and unrealised gains or losses, based on its percentage interest in the Fund Partnership. Distributions received from the
Fund Partnership are recorded as a reduction in its investment in the Fund Partnership.

The Intermediate Partnership assesses, at each Statement of Financial Position date, whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. In the case of available for sale equity securities, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the securities are impaired. If evidence of impairment exists, the
cumulative loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit and [oss. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on eguity instruments are not
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
H. Available for sale financial asset (continued)

reversed thiough the income statement. If, in a subseyuenl period, the fair valuc of a debt instrument classified as available for sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an cvent occurring after the impatrment loss was recognised in profit or loss,
the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of profit and loss. As at December 31, 2017 there is no impairment being
recognised (December 31, 2016: USD Nil).

L. Limited partner’s capital

The capital contributed to the Intermediate Partnership consists of capital contribution and advance contribution. The capital
contribution of the limited partner amounts to 0.01% of the limited partner’s commitment. The limited partner contribntes the: full
amount of its capital coniribution on the closing date on which it is admitted to the Intermediate Partnership. The capital
contributions are not returned to the limited partner until the end of the life of the Fund. No interest will be paid or payable by the
Intermediate Partnership upon any capital contribution. In order to fund the eapital calls from the Fund Partnership, the Intermediate
Partnership draws down from the limited partner’s committed capital. The advances are drawn down pro rata to the aggregate
undrawn commitments to tho Intermediate Partnership, until the commitments from the limited partner are fully paid up. Mo interest
will be paid or payable by the Intermediate Partnership upon any advances. On termination of the Intermediate Partnership, the
limited partner will be subordinated to all other creditors as regards repayment of any advances outstanding together with the
committed capital.

J. Distributions io limited partner

Distributions are made by the Intermediate Partnership in accordance with its LPA, see Note 1.

K. Revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an acemal hasis using the effective interest rate method. Interest income is included in finance
income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

L. Provisions

Provisions are recogniscd when the Intermediate Partncrship has an obligation (lcgal or constructive) arising from a past cvent and
the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured.

M. Going concern

As a result of the funding activities undertaken, the Intermediate Partnership should be able to operate within the level of its current
financing. After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectation that the Intermediate Partnership has adequate
resources based on its uncalled committed capital (sce Note 5) to continue in operational existence for the foresceable future. The
Intermediate Partnership therefore adopts the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

3 Financial risk management
A. Financial risk factors

The Intermediate Partnership’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market nisk (including price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Intennedize Pannership invests solely in the Fund Partnership. An investment in the Fund Parineaship involves certain risks
relating to the Fund Partnerchip’s structure and to the investment policies which it applies. Refer to Note 3 of the Fund Parinership’s
financial statements for further detail on the Fund Partnership’s finoncial risk management. Where possible, the General Partner of
the Intermediate Partnership and its operator (J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc.} and its adviser (JPMorgan Asset
Management {UK) Limited) will take the necessary actions to mitigate these risks.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
A. Financial risk factors (continued)

KN | Market risk

Price risk

The Intermediate Partnership is exposed to market risk with respect to the value of the available for sale financial asset. The future
cash flows related to the available for sale financial asset in the Intermediate Partnership are mainly linked to the Fund’s investments
in maritime investments which are exposed to price risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Intermediate Partnership is not exposed to interest rate risk as its assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing.

Given the illiquid nature of the underlying Investments, the Intermediate Partnership’s remaining cash flow risk is largely considered
to be liquidity, and this is further considered in 3.3.

Currency risk

The Intermediate Partnetship’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market exchange rates
as the Partnership is not directly involved in foreign currency transactions.

As at December 31, 2017 and also in the prior year the Intermediate Partnership did not have any hedging policy with respect to
foreign exchange and interest rate risks as exposure to such risks was not considered to be significant by the General Partner.

32  Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a
financial loss. The Intermediate Partnership’s exposure to credit risk is indicated by the carrying amount of its assets which consist
principally of the available for sale financial asset in the Fund Partnership and amounts due from limited partner, cash and cash
equivalents.

The credit risk on available for sale financial asset is mainly related to the underlying investments held by the Intermediate
Partnership through the Fund Partnership. Refer to Note 3 of the Fund Partnership’s financial statements for further detail on the
Fund Partnership’s financial risk management.

The Intermediate Partnership has no significant concentration of credit risk.

As at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, excess cash is held in short term cash accounts with creditworthy financial
institutions (held with J.P. Morgan Chase Bank N.A. London which has a credit rating of “Aa3” (2016: “Aa3”) for long term debt
from the credit rating agency Moody’s).

The accounts receivable balances of the Intermediate Partnership are neither past due nor impaired. The Intermediate Partnership is not
deemed to have any significant credit risk.

33 Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions at short notice.

The commitment of the Intermediate Partnership into the Fund Partnership is limited to the commitment of the limited partner into
the Intermediate Partnership. The limited partner’s commitment to the Intermediate Partnership is available for drawdown for any
working capital or investment purposes.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

A. Financial risk factors (continued)

33 Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the Intermediate Partnership’s financial liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to limited partners)
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the Statement of Financial Position date (and comparative
period end) to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not deemed to be significant.

At December 31, 2017 Less than 3 months - 1to2 2t05 Over 5

All amounts in $ 000s 3 months 1 year years years years Total
Current liabilities

Amounts due to affiliates 104 - - - - 104
Accrued expenses 14 - - - - 14
Total current liabilities 118 - - - - 118
At December 31, 2016 Less than 3 months - 1to2 2t05 Over 5

All amounts in $ 000s 3 months 1 year years years years Total
Current liabilities

Amounts due to affiliates 94 - - - - 94
Accrued expenses 11 - - - - 11
Total current liabilities 105 - - - - 105

B. Fair value estimation

Fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties
transacting at “arm’s length”. This requires the Intermediate Partnership to classify, for disclosure purposes, fair value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair

value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1

Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Inputs other than quoted prices included within the level that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {that is, as

prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3

Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

B. Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table analyses the fair value hicrarchy of the Intermediate Partnership’s financial assets and liabilities (by class)

measured at fair value as at December 31, 2017

As at December 31, 2017

Assets
Available for sale financial asset

Total

Liabilities
Net assets attributablie to the limited partner
Total

As at December 31, 2016

Assets
Available for sale financial asset

Total

Liabilities
Net assets attributable to the limited partner
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 000s $ 000s $ 000s $ 000s
- - 313,970 313,970
- - 313,970 313,970
- - 313,878 313,878
- - 313,878 313,878
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 000s $ 000s $ 000s $ 000s
- - 233,508 233,508
- - 233,508 233,508
- - 233,431 233,431
- - 233,431 233,431

The Intermediate Partnership held no level 1 or level 2 financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the current year or
the prior year. There were no movements between level 1, 2 and 3 financial assets and liabilities during the year. In the opinion of
General Partner, the carrying values of the financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their fair values. Refer

to Note 3B of the Fund Partnership’s financial statements for the valuation process for level 3 assets.

C. Capital risk management

For the purpose of this section, capital means capital contribution and advance contribution.

The Intermediate Partnership’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Intermediate Partnership’s ability to continue
as a going concern so as to maximise value and returns for the partners and keep an optimal capital structure.

Since inception the Intermediate Partnership was financed by capital contributions from the limited partner and by cash advances
from the Fund Partnership and it did not enter into any borrowings.
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4. Available for sale financial asset

Movements during the ycar were as follows:
2017

Cost:

As at January 1, 2017
Additions

As at December 31, 2017

Fair value movement:

As at January 1, 2017

Net change in fair value of available for sale financial asset
As at December 31, 2017

Fair Value:

As at January 1, 2017
As at December 31, 2017

Available for sale financial asset include the following:

Unlisted securities:
Global Maritime Investment Fund LP

Total
$ 000s

412,379
33,720

446,099

(178,871)
46,742

(132,129)

233,508

313,970

December 31, December 3,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s

313,970 233,508

313,970 233,508

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Intermediate Partnership had a 61.87% (December 31, 2016: 61.87%) interest in
the Fund Partnership, based on the percentage of its commitments into the Fund Partnership. The Intermediate Partnership does not
exercise significant influence over the Fund Partnership as under clause 9.4 of the Fund Partnership’s LPA, the Operator has full
power and authority in respect of the affairs of the Fund Partnership and the management and control of the Fund Partnership’s
business shalt rest exclusively with the Operator. Therefore, the Intermediate Partnership is not accounted for as an associate.

As at December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership had net assets attributable to limited partners of USD508.53 million (December 31,
2016: USD378.26 million) and the Intermediate Partnership’s share of the Fund Partnership’s net assets amounted to USD313.97
million (December 31, 2016: USD233.51 million). Under the Fund Partnership’s LPA the Intermediate Partnership is liable to pay
the debts, liabilities or obligations of the Fund Partnership limited to the amount of the Intermediate Partnership’s committed capital.

The lower share of net assets as compared to the Intermediate Partnership’s interest in the Fund Partnership is because the JPMorgan

affiliates are exempt from paying the General Partner Share.
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5. Limited partner’s contributions and commitments

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the outstanding vncalled committed capital was as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s
Committed capital 482,800 482,800
Contributions (482,800} (450,739)
Recallable distribution! 13,190 14,849
Uncalled committed capital 13,190 46,910

In September 2014, a distribution of USD14.85 million was made to the limited pariners. Since this distribution was made during
the investment period, it is subject to recall. As at December 31, 2017, USD1.66 million of the USD14.85 million was recalled.

In October 2015 a second distribution of USD23.51 million was made to the limited partners. This distribution is not included in
the table above as it is not recallable, due to the fact that it happened after the investment period ended.

The Founder Limited Partner, JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings (Luxembourg) 5.4 r.] has a USD100 commitment.

The balances due from the Feeder LLC are detailed below,

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s
Amounts due from limited partner:-

Due from the limited partner 21 21
21 21

6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s
Cash at bank 5 7
5 7

7. Related party transactions

The Fund Partnership, together with the Fund Partnership’s General Partner, I.P. Morgan G1 (GP) Limited, J.P. Morgan Investment
Management Inc. (the ‘Operator’) JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited (“Investment Advisor’), J.P. Morgan Chase Bank
N.A. London Branch (the ‘Bank’) and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., Dublin Branch (the ‘Accountant’), are related parties as they
are subsidiaries or affiliates of JPMorgan Chase & Co.

The Fund Partnership is managed by the Operator. Under the terms of the LPA, the Fund Partnership appointed the Operator as a
manager to provide management services to the Fund Partnership.

On July 22, 2014, JPMorgan Investment Management Inc. replaced JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited as Operator 1o the
Fund Partnership. On the same date JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited was appointed as non-discretionary Investment
Advisor to ] P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. in its capacity as Operator of the Fund Partnership. J.P. Morgan Investment
Management Inc. is incorporated in the United States.
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7. Related party transactions (continued)

General Partner’s Profit Share (“GPPS”)

A GPFS is payable to the General Partner, J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited on termination of the Intermediate Partnership and
is accrued at the rate of USD100 for each calendar year. As at December 31, 2017, USD700 (December 31, 2016: USD656) of
GPPS was outstanding,

At Fund Partnership level, a General Partner’s Share / management fee is payable to the Fund Partnership’s General Partner and is
payable directly by the Fund Partnership and not via the Intermediate Partnership.

Founder Limited Partner Profit Share

A Founder Limited Partner Profit Share is payable to the Founder Partner, JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings (Luxembourg)
S.4 r.l, on termination of the Intermediate Partnership and is accrued at the rate of USD100 for each calendar year the Founder
Limited Partner remains a limited partner. The charge during the year was USD100 (December 31, 2016: USD100) of which
USD700 (December 31, 2016: USD656) of Founder Limited Partner Profit Share was outstanding.

Investments in / transactions with affiliates

The Intermediate Partnership invests in the Fund Partnership, and as at December 31, 2017 the value of the investment was
USD313.97 million {December 31, 2016: USD233.51 million) see Note 4. As at December 31, 2017 the Intermediate Partnership
owed the Fund Partnership USDO.10 million (December 31, 2016: USD0.09 million).

Transactions with Limited Partner

The Feeder LLC invests in the Intermediate Partnership, and as at December 31, 2017 the Feeder LLC owed the Intermediate
Partnership USDO0.02 million (December 31, 2016: USD0.02 million) (See Note 5).

8. Accrued expenses
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s
Accrued audit fees 12 10
Accrued professional fees 2 1
14 11
9. Operating expenses
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s
Audit fees 12 10
Professional fees 2 1
14 11

Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP

Page 25



Notes to the Financial Statements fot the Intermediate Partnership | 2017

10. Finance costs
Bank charges
11. Income tax

The Intermediate Partnership is tax transparent for the purposes of UK taxation.

12. Changes in working capital

December 31, 2017;

Amounts due to affiliates

Accrued expenses

December 31, 2016:

Amounts due to affiliates

Accrued expenses

13. Ultimate controlling party

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

$ 000s $ 000s

1 -

1 -

Balance as at Balance as at Change in
December 31,2017  December 31,2016  working capital
$ 000s $ 000s $ 000s

63 53 10

14 1 3

77 64 13

Balance as at Balance as at Change in
December 31,2016  December 31, 2015  working capital
$ 000s $ 000s $ 000s

53 44 9

11 10 1

64 54 10

In the opinion of the directors of the General Partner, there is no ultimate controlling party.

14, Events after the date of the statement of financial position

It preparing these lingncial siaements, ihe General Pastner has evalualed evenis that have occurred from the statement of financial
position date to the date the financial statements were issued/available to be issued and has determined that no other events besides
those being disclosed above have accurred that would require recognition or additional disclosures in these financial statements.

15. Approval for financial statements

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the General Partner on March 28, 2018,
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General Partnet’s Report 2017

The Board of Directors of the General Partner presents its Annual Report and the audited financial statements of Global Maritime
Investment Fund Feeder LP (formerly “I.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP”) for the year ended December
31,2017.

Principal activities

The Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP (formerly “I.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP”) (the
“Feeder Partnership”) has been established to invest solely in Global Maritime Investment Fund LP (formerly “J.P. Morgan Global
Maritime Investment Fund LP”) (the “Fund Partnership™) for the purpose of income generation and capital appreciation.

As the activity of the Feeder Partnership is directly linked to the activity of the Fund Partnership, the General Partner's report reflects
the activities of the underlying Fund Partnership.

Business review and future development
Investments

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership, through its subsidiaries and joint ventures, took delivery of four
vessels {(one dry bulk carrier, one containership vessel and two car carriers).

During the course of the year, the Fund Partnership, through its subsidiaries, disposed of four containership vessels.

As at December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership, through its subsidiaries and joint ventures, owned a total of fifty-eight operating
vessels, (thirty-six dry bulk carriers, thirteen containership vessels, seven car carriers and two tankers) and shipbuilding contracts
for the construction of five vessels (three containership vessels and two dry bulk carriers), which are expected to be delivered in
2018.

As at December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership had commitments of approximately USD30.51 millicn in relation to the above
mentioned joint ventures and shipbuilding contracts (December 31, 2016: USD110.62 million). These commitments are partly
offset by the Fund Partnership’s indirect share of undrawn credit facilities secured by the relevant joint ventures of USD7.63 million
(December 31, 2016: USD8.75 million).

Results

Investment and dividend income received

During the year, the Fund Partnership received USD3.35 million of dividend income from its subsidiary Proteus Holding Limited
(2016: USD{.55 million of dividend income from Proteus Holding Limited.)

Fair value movements of investmenis
During the year, the Fund Partnership’s investments increased in value by USD81.60 million (2016: USD121.65 million decrease
in value). This increase in value was mainly attributable to unrealised gains on vessels and shipbuilding contracts.

Net result

The net result for the year, after taking into account the dividend income received of USD3.35 million (2016: USDO0.55 million),
guarantee fee income of USD(O.08 million (2016: USD0.17 million), fair value gain on investments of USD81.60 million (2016:
loss of USD121.65 million), the general partner share of USD7.53 million (2016: USD7.89 million) and other fund operating and
finance costs of USD1.73 million (2016: USD4.12 million) is a profit of USD75.78 million (December 31, 2016: loss of USD132.94
million). The Feeder Partnership’s proportion of this profit is USD22.27 million (December 31, 2016: loss of USD39.26 million).

Capital calls

During the year, the Fund Partnership made three capital calls from its limited partners amounting to USD54.50 million (2016:
USD133.05 million). The purpose of these capital calls was to repay amounts previously drawn from the Fund Partnership’s credit
facility and to fund the completion of vessel investments. The Feeder Partnership’s contribution to this capital call amounted to
USD16.07 million (2016: USD}39.22 million).
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
Refer to Note 3 in the notes to the financial statements for details on financial risk management objectives and policies.

Events after the balance sheet date
Refer to Note 14 in the notes to the financial statements for details on events after the balance sheet date.

Statement of General Partner’s responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the audited financial statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the General Partner’s Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

UK Company law requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the General
Partner has prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) as adopted
by the European Union.

Under UK Company law, the General Partner must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Feeder Partnership and of the profit or loss of the Feeder Partnership for that year. In
preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable IFRSs have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statemenis on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Feeder Partnership
will continue in business.

The General Partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Feeder
Partnership’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Feeder Partnership and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by
the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008. The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Feeder
Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Feeder Partnership has applied the Investment Entities amendment to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’. Since the
Feeder Partnership is an investment entity under the standard, it is exempt from consolidating underlying subsidiaries and instead
it is required to account for these subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. Refer to Notes 2A, 2C and 4.

The Fund Partnership has taken advantage of the small companies exemption and has not presented a strategic report.

The financial statements are made available through FIS Data Exchange, a third party hosted site. The maintenance and integrity of
the FIS Data Exchange site is the respensibility of the General Partner; the work carried out by the auditor does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditor accepts no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom and Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from

legislation in other jurisdictions.

In accordance with Section 418 of Companies Act 2006, the General Partner report shall include a statement, in the case of each
director in office at the date the General Partner report is approved, that:

(a) so far as each director of the General Partner is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Feeder
Partnership’s auditor is unaware; and
(b} each director of the General Partner has taken all the steps that he ocught to have taken as a director in order to make himself

aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Feeder Partnership’s auditor is aware of that information.
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General Partner’s Report 2017

Statement of General Partner’s responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the audited financial statements
(continued)

Independent Auditors

The General Partner confirms that so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Feeder Partnership’s
auditor is unaware, and it has taken all the steps that it ought to have taken as a General Partner in order to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Feeder Partnership’s auditor is aware of that information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as the Independent Auditors.

By order of the General Partner

March 28, 2018

ForMhalf of J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited Date
{formerly “J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP Scots) Limited”)
Director
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Independent auditors’ report to the partners of Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP’s financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at December 31, 2017 and of its profit and
cash flows for the year then ended;

s have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships
by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Financial Statements {the “Annual Report™), which comprise: the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the
statement of changes in net assets attributable to Limited Partners for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements,
which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion,

Independence

We remained independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs {UK) require us to report to you when:

e the general partner’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

e the general partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for
a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the qualifying
partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP
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Independent Auditors’ Report 2017

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our anditors’
report thereon. The general pariner is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the General Partner’s Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006
as applied to qualifying partnerships have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below.

General Partner’s Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the General Partner’s Report for
the year ended December 31, 2017 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not identify any material misstatements in the General Partner’s Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the andit
Responsibilities of the general partner for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner’s responsibilities set out on page 4, the general partner is responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. The general partner is also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the general partner is responsible for assessing the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the general partner either intends to liquidate the qualifying partnership or to cease operations, or has no realistic aliernative but to
do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This repon, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the partners of the qualifying partnership as a body in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the qualifying partnership, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Entitlement to exemptions
Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the general

partner were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from preparing a strategic report. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Sl

Sandra Dowling (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

23 March 2018
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Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership

2017

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2017

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Notes $ 000s $ 000s
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Financial asset:
Available for sale financial asset 4 149,589 111,253
Total non-current assets 149,589 111,253
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 1 1
Total current assets 1
Total assets 149,590 111.254
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Amounts due to affiliates 7 80 67
Accrued expenses 8 15 12
Total current liabilities 95 79
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to limited
partners) 95 79
Net assets attributable to limited partners 149,495 111,175
Total liabilities 149,590 111,254

The financial statements were approved by the General Partner on March 28, 2018 and signed on its behalf by

—
March 28. 2018
p——
Director Date

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP
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I'inancial Statements for the Feeder Partnership 2017
Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2017
Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Notes $ 000s $ 000s
Income - -
Expenses
Operating expenses 9 (15) (11}
Operating loss for the year (15) 11
Finance costs 10 ) 8))]
Net loss for the year (16) (12)
Other comprehensive profit/(loss):
Net change in fair value of available for sale financial asset 4 22,270 (39,261)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year 22,254 (39,273)
Net result for the year
Attributable to limited partners (16) (12)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the year
Attributable to limited partners 22,254 (39,273)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership 2017
Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP
Statement of Changes in Equity and Net Assets attributable to limited partners
For the year ended December 31, 2017
All amounts in $ 000s
Advance
Capital  contribution/ Retained Other
contribution distribution earnings reserves Total
Balance at January 1, 2017 23 196,449 {78) (85,219) 111,175
Advance contributions - 16,066 - - 16,066
Distributions - - - - -
Net result for the year - - (16) - (16)
Other comprehensive profit
Net change in fair value of available for sale
financial asset - - - 22,270 22,270
Balance as at December 31, 2017 23 212,515 %4 (62,949) 149,495
Advance
Capital  contribution/ Retained Other
contribution distribution earnings reserves Total
Balance at January 1, 2016 23 157,228 (66) (45,958) 111,227
Advance contributions - 39,221 - - 39,221
Distributions - - - - -
Net result for the year - - (12) - (12)
Other comprehensive loss
Net change in tair value of available for sale
financial asset - - - (39,261) (39,261)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 23 196,449 (78) (85,219) 111,175

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP

Page 11



Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership

2017

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP
Statement of Cash Flows
Fer the year ended December 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Net result for the year attributable to limited partners

Adjustments in relation to:

Finance costs

Changes in working capital

Cash generated by operating activities before finance costs

Finance costs paid
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in available for sale financial asset
Net cash generated by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Advance contribution from limited partners
Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Notes $ 000s $ 000s
(16} (12)

10 1 1
12 16 11
1 .

10 (1) (1)
- 1)

16,066 39,221

16,066 39,221

(16,066) (39,221)

(16,066) (39,221)

- (1)

1 2

1 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership 2017

1. General information

Global Maritime Investment Fund (the “Fund”) comprises the following:

Fund entity: Date of Jurisdiction: Registered office:
registration:
Global Maritime Investment Fund LP April 26, 2010 England 60  Victoria  Embankment,
(“Fund Partnership™) London, EC4Y OJP, England
Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP April 15, 2010 Scotland 50 Lothian Road, Festival
(“Feeder Partnership™) Square, Edinburgh, EH3 9W],
Scotland
Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP  April 15, 2010 Scotland 50 Lothian Road, Festival
(“Intermediate Partnership™) Square, Edinburgh, EH3 9WJ,
Scotland
Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder, LLC April 7, 2010 Delaware 2711 Centerville Road, Suite
(“Feeder LLC") 400, Wilmington, Delaware
19808, USA

In accordance with the requirements of the Volcker rule during the year, the following entities have been renamed:

Date of name

Name Former name ch

ange
Global Maritime Investment Fund LP | J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund LP 20th July, 2017
g;gg::  partime Tnvestment Fund |y p Norgan Globat Maritime Tnvestment Fund Feeder LP 19th July, 2017
Global Maritime Investment Fund J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder, LLC 3rd July, 2017
Feeder, LLC

Global Maritime Investment Fund

Intermediate LP J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Intermediate LP | 19th July, 2017

J.P. Morgan G1 (GP) Limited J.P. Morgan GMIF (GP) Limited 3rd July, 2017
J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited I.P. Morgan GMIF (GP SCOTS) Limited 3rd July, 2017
JPMAM GL CIPLP J.P. Morgan Global Maritime Investment Fund Cayman CIP, LP 1 17th July, 2017

The Fund is closed-ended and limited partners may participate in the Fund by purchasing (i) interests directly in the Fund
Partnership; (ii) limited liability company interests in the Feeder LLC which invests in the Fund Partnership via the Intermediate
Partnership; (iii) limited partnership interests in the Feeder Partnership.

The sole purpose of this Feeder Partnership is to acquire interests in the Fund Partnership. As at December 31, 2017, the Fund had
raised capital commitments totalling USD780.33 million (December 31, 2016: USD780.33 million), of which USD230.03 million
{December 31, 2016: USD230.03 million) related to the Feeder Partnership.

The Fund Partnership’s Founder Limited Partner JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings {Luxembourg) S.4 r.I {(the “Founder
Limited Partner”) made a USD100 capital contribution to the Fund Partnership (December 31, 2016: USD100). The Founder
Limited Partner has no other commitments besides the capital contributed.

JPMAM G1 CIP LP (“Carried Interest Partnership”) and its limited partners participate in the Fund as a limited partner with
commitments of USD22.73 million to the Fund Partnership (December 31, 2016: USD22.73 million).

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LP
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership 2017

1. General information (continued)

The Feeder Partnership’s profits and losses are allocated to the limited partners pro rata to their indirect commitments in the Fund
Partnership. The Fund Partnership’s profits and losses are allocated to the limited partners, pro-rata on their commitments.

Distributions are made to the limited partners on the same bagis of allocation as that which would have applied had that limited
partner been admitted directly to the Fund Partnership, subject to any additional specific Feeder Partnership expenses, Feeder
Partnership Founder Limited Partner profit share and Feeder Partnership General Partner profit share.

Final closing

The Fund’s final closing date was December 9, 2011. The total commitments on the final closing date amounted to USD780.33
million.

Investment strategy

The purpose of the Fund is to invest in vessels in any part of the world. The Fund will invest through a variety of different investment
methods, including, without limitation, by directly or indirectly, (i) acquiring shares or other ownership units in an existing or newly
formed holding company which owns one or more vessels; (ii) investing in listed and unlisted equity or debt securities (including
shares, bonds and other securities) of an entity that owns one or more vessels (including in an entity at a pre-IPO stage or a listed
entity which the Fund secks to take private); or (iii) making; refinancing or acquiring a loan (including a non performing loan)
secured by one or more vessels.

The Fund will invest, directly or indirectly, in vessels in the bulker sector (including, withont limitation, roll-on/roll-off vessels),
the tanker sector (including, without limitation, crude, produet, chemical and liquid petroleum gas carriers and liquefied natural gas
carriers (“LING vessels”) and the containership sector (together bulker tanker containership vessels (“BTC vessels™) and, subject to
the invesunent guidelines included in the Limited Pannership Agreement (‘LPA™), may invesi in offshore supply vessels, barges,
car carrier vessels and vessels in other sectors (“Non-BTC vessels™).

Investment period

The Fund’s investment period commenced on the initial closing date (June 10, 2010) and ended on December 9, 2014, the third
anniversary of the final closing date (December 9, 2011).

Fund termination

The Fund shall terminate on the sixth anniversary of the end of the investment period plus an additional two consecutive one- year
periods, at the election of the Operator with prior approval of the Funds limited partners.

Drawdowns

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership drew down USD54.50 million (December 31, 2016: USD133.05
millicn) from the limited partners to repay amounts previously drawn from the Fund Parinership’s crodit facility for investment and
working capital purposes and to fund the completion of vessel investments. The Feeder Partnership’s contribution to this capital
call amounted to USD16.07 million (December 31, 2016:; USD39.22 million).
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership 2017

1. General information (continued)
Distributions
In accordance with the Fund Partnership’s LPA, distributions are made to the Fund Partnership’s limited partners as follows:

(a) First 100% to the General Partner until the General Partner has received the General Partner’s Share;

(b) Second, 100% to the limited partners until they have received cumulative distributions equal to the aggregate of : (i) their
advance contributions used to fund the vessel investment in respect of which distributions are being made and all other
realised investments, plus their proportionate share of any write-downs of unrealised vessel investments, as of that time;
and (ii) the advance contributions used to fund all Fund Partnership expenses and loans in respect of the General Partner’s
share allocated to the investments included in (i);

(c) 100% to the limited partners until the cumulative distributions to the limited partners under this paragraph (c) and
paragraphs (d) and (e) equal the 9% preferred return, compounded annually;

(d) 60% to the Carried Interest Partner and 40% to the limited partners, until the Carried Interest Partner has received 20% of
the aggregate distributions under paragraph (c) and this paragraph (d); and

(e} 80% to the limited partners and 20% to the Carried Interest Partner.

As at December 31, 2017, the inception to date distributions from the Fund Partnership to its limited partners amounted to USD62.00
million (December 31, 2016: USD62.00 million). The Feeder Partnership’s share of these distributions was USD18.28 million
{December 31, 2016; USD18.28 million). The Feeder Partnership did not receive any distributions from the Fund Partnership during
the year ended December 31, 2017 and consequently it did not make any distributions to its limited partners. (December 31, 2016:
USD Nil)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Feeder Partnership have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulation 2008.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention modified for the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Fund Partnership and Feeder Partnership meet the definition of an investment entity as defined by IFRS 10 and the Feeder
Partnership is required to account for the investment in the Fund Partnership at fair value of the available for sale financial asset.
These separate financial statements are the only financial statements presented by the Feeder Partnership. Refer to Note 2C.

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the General Partner to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Feeder Partnership’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions or estimates are
significant to financial statements are disclosed in Note 2G below.

B. Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
i. Standards and amendments to existing standards for the financial year beginning January 1, 2017 and adopted by
the Feeder Partnership

Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows’ became effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. These
amendments require an enlity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

There are no standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning January 1, 2017 that have not been adopted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership 2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

B. Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

ii. Standards, amendments and interpretations effective for the financial year beginning January 1, 2017 and adopted
early

Theae are no standards, interpretativns vr amendingits to cxisting standarda that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning January 1, 2017 that have been adopted early.

fii. Standards, amendments and interpretations that are in issue but not effective for the financial year beginning
January 1, 2017 and not early adopted

IFRS ¢ ‘Financial Instruments’ addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and reissued in October 2010. It replaces the parts of IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’ that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial
assets to be classified into two measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised cost. The
determination is made at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the
1AS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch. As the investment will continue to be measured at fair value, the adoption of this standard is
not expected to have any other material impact on the financial statements of the Feeder Partnership. The Feeder Partnership adopted
IFRS 9 in the accounting period beginning on Janwary 1, 2018.

Amendment to IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. These amendments comprise clarifications of the guidance on
identifying performance obligations, accounting for licences of intellectual property and the principal versus agent assessment
(gross versus net revenue presentation). IFRS 15 is a converged standard from the TASB and FASB on revenue recognition. The
standard will improve the financial teporting of revenuc and improve comparability of the top line in financial statements globally.
Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRS. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018. This standard is not expected to have material effect on the presentation of financial
statements of the Feeder Partnership.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ now requires lessees (o recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for
virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets; however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the
IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts),
lessors will also be affected by the new standard, At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact
negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under IFRS 16 a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The standard includes two recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of 'low-value’ assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.c., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will
be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. IFRS 16 also
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2019. Early application is permitted, but not before an entity applies IFRS 15. This standard is not expected
to have material effect on the presentation of financial staternents of the Feeder Partnership.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership 2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are in issue but not effective for the financial year beginning
January 1, 2017 and not early adopted {continued)

=
=
-
.

A number of other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations were effective for annual periods beginning after
January 1, 2017 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. The General Partner does not expect these to
have a material effect on the financial statements of the Feeder Partnership.

The General Partner does not expect the adoption of the standards, amendments and interpretations that are in issue but not yet
effective listed above will have a material impact on the Feeder Partnership’s financial statements in future periods. Beyond the
information above, it is not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these standards until a detailed review has
been completed.

C. Investment Entity

The Feeder Partnership, which is closed ended, has various investors and holds multiple investments through the Fund Partnership.
Net assets attributable to the limited partners are classified as a financial liability, due to a finite life and contractual payment
provisions to each of the limited partners within the Fund Partnership’s LPA. Net assets attributable to limited partner’s capital are
carried at amortised cost and are classified as debt in accordance withTAS 32. The limited partner’s interests are exposed to variable
returns from changes in the fair value of the Fund’s net assets.

The Feeder Partnership has been deemed to meet the definition of an investment entity per IFRS 10 as the following conditions
exist:

i) The Feeder Partnership, which is closed ended, has obtained funds for the purpose of providing investors with
investment management services.

ii) The Feeder Partnership’s business purpose, which was communicated directly to investors, is investing solely for
returns from capital appreciation and investment income, through the use of a Master-Feeder structure.

iii) The performance of investments made through the subsidiaries of the Fund Partnership are measured and evaluated
on a fair value basis.

iv) The investors’ ownership interests in the Feeder Partnership are in the form of capital and advance contributions. They

are exposed to variable returns from changes in the fair value of the Feeder Partnership’s net assets.

D. Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentational currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Feeder Partnership are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Feeder Partnership operates (the “functional currency”).

The financial statements are presented in US Dollars (USD or $), which is the Feeder Partnership’s functional and presentational
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at
the Statement of Financial Position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements fot the Feeder Partnership 2017

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
D. Foreign currency transiation

Transactions and balances (continued}

When gains or losses on a non-monetary item are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, the exchange component of
that gain or loss shall be recognised directly in other comprehensive income. Conversely when gains or losses on a non-monetary
item are recognised directly in the profit or loss within the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the exchange component of that
gain or loss shall be recognised in the profit or loss within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

E. Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value.

F Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents can comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term investments in an active
market with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts.

G. Use of significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of income, expenses and unrealised gains or losses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors. These include
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Feeder Partnership makes estimates and assumptions concerning:

i) the fair value of the available for sale financial asset,

ii) the treatment of the investment in the Fund Partnership as an available for sale financial asset,
iii) the going concern of the Feeder Partnership, and

iv) the use of investment entity accounting as defined in IFRS 10.

The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

H. Available for sale financial asset

All investments are initially recognised at cost, being fair value of the consideration given and including acquisition charges
associated with the investment. Given the nature of the investment into the Fund Partnership it is classified as available for sale
financial asset.

After initial recognition, investments which are classified as available for sale financial asset are measured at fair value. Changes
in the fair value are recognised directly in the other comprehensive income as net change in fair value of available for sale financial
asset and allocated to net assets attributable to limited partners until the investment is derecognised. At this time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised is transferred to the profit and loss within the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value is
the price that would be received 10 sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Refer to Note 3B in the Fund Partnership financial statements for further details on the fair valuation
policy of the investments.

The investment in the Fund Partnership consists of non-marketable, limited partnership interests. The cost basis of the investment
held by the Feeder Partnership includes all amounts contributed to the Fund Partnership. The fair value of investments represents
the cost of the investment adjusted for the Feeder Partnership’s allocated share of investment income, expenses, realised and
unrealised gains or losses, based on its percentage interest in the Fund Partnership. Distributions received from the Fund Partership
are recorded as a reduction in its investment in the Fund Partnership.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
H. Available for sale financial asset (continued)

The Feeder Parinership assesses, at each Statement of Financial Position date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. In the case of available-for-sale equity securities, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered in determining whether the securities are impaired. If evidence of impairment exists, the cumulative
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through
the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment
loss is reversed through the statement of profit and loss. As at December 31, 2017 there is no impairment being recognised
(December 31, 2016: USD Nil).

L Limited partners’ capital

The capital contribuled to the Feeder Partnership consists of capital contribution and advance contribution. The capital contribution
of each limited partner amounts to 0.01% of each limited partner's commitment, Each limited partner contributes the full amount
of its capital contribution on the closing date on which it is admitted to the Feeder Partnership. The capital contributions are not
returned to the limited partner until the end of the life of the Fund. No interest will be paid or payable by the Feeder Partnership
upon any capital contribution. In order to fund the capital calls from the Fund Partnership, the Feeder Partnership draws down from
the limited partner’s commiltted capital. The advances are drawn down pro rata to the aggregate undrawn commitments to the Feeder
Partnership, until the commitments from the limited partner are fully paid up. No interest will be paid or payable by the Feeder
Partnership upon any advances. On termination of the Feeder Partnership, the limited partner will be subordinated to all other
creditors as regards repayment of any advances outstanding together with the committed capital.

J- Distributions to limited partners

Distributions are made by the Feeder Partnership in accordance with its LPA, see Note 1.

K. Revenue recognition

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method. Interest income is included in finance
income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

L Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Feeder Partnership has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past event and the
costs 1o settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured.

M. Going concern

As a result of the funding activities undertaken, the Feeder Partnership should be able to operate within the level of its current
financing. After making enquiries, the General Partner has a reasonable expectation that the Feeder Partnership has adequate
resources based on its uncalled committed capital (see Note 5) to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
Feeder Partnership therefore adopts the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.
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3 Financial risk management

A. Financial risk factors

The Feeder Partnership’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Feeder Partnership invests solely in the Fund Partnership. An investment in the Fund Partnership involves certain risks relating
to the Fund Partnership’s structure and to the investment policies which it applies. Refer to Note 3 of the Fund Partnership’s financial
statements for further detail on the Fund Partnership’s financial risk management. Where possible, the General Partner of the Feeder
Partnership and its adviser (J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. and JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited) will take
the necessary actions to mitigate these risks.

3.1 Market risk

Price risk

The Feeder Partnership is exposed to the market risk with respect to the value of the available for sale financial asset. The future
cash flows related to the available for sale financial asset in the Feeder Partnership are mainly linked to the Fund Partnership’s
maritime investments which are exposed to price risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Feeder Partnership was not exposed to interest rate risk as its assets and liabilities were non-interest bearing.

Given the illiquid nature of the underlying Investments, the Feeder Partnership’s remaining cash flow risk is largely considered to be
liquidity, and this is further considered in 3.3.

Currency risk

The Feeder Partnership’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market exchange ratcs as the
Partnership is not directly involved in foreign currency transactions.

As at December 31, 2017 and also in the prior year the Feeder Partnership did not have any hedging policy with respect to foreign
exchange and interes! rate risks as exposure to such risks was not considered 1o be significant by the General Partner.

3.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a
financial loss.

The Feeder Partnership’s exposure to credit risk is indicated by the carrying amount of its assets which consist principally of the
available fur sale [nancial asscl i the Fund Partnership. The credit risk on (he availuble for sale financial assed is wainly related o
the underlying investments held by the Feeder Partnership through the Fund Partnership. Refer to Note 3 of the Fund Partnership’s
financial statements for further detail on the Fund Partnership’s financial risk management.

The Feeder Partnership has no significant concentration of credit risk.

As at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, excess cash is held in short term cash accounts with creditworthy financial
institutions (held with JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. London Branch which has a credit rating of “Aa3” (2016: “Aa3”) for long term
debt from the credit rating agency Moody’s).
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management nplies maintainiug sullicient cash, the availability of funding through an adequatc amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions at short notice.

The commitment of the Feeder DMartnership into the Fund Partnership is limited to the commitment of the limited partners into the
Feeder Partnership. The limited partners’ commitment to the Feeder Partnership is available for drawdown for any working capital
or investment purpose.

The table below summarises the Feeder Partnership’s financial liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to limited partners) into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the Statement of Financial Position date (and comparative period
cnd) to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not deemed to be significant.

At December 31, 2017 Less than 3 months 1to2 2to5 Over 8
All amounts in $ 000s 3 months to 1 year years years years Total

Current liabilities

Amounts due to affiliates 80 - - - - 80
Accrued expenses 15 - - - - 15
Total current liabilities 95 - - - - 95
At December 31, 2016 Less than 3 months l1to2 2t05 Over 5

All amounts in § 000s 3 months to 1 year years years years Total

Current liabilities

Amounts due to affiliates 67 - - - - 67

Accrued expenses 12 - - - - 12

Total current liabilities 79 - - - - 79
B. Fair value estimation

Fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties
transacting al “arm’s length”. This requires the Feeder Partnership to classify, for disclosure purposes, fair value measurements
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

Level 1
Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2
Inputs other than quoted prices included within the level that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3
Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The following table analyses the fair value hierarchy of the Feeder Partnership’s financial assets and liabilities (by class) measured
at fair value as at December 31, 2017.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

B. Fair value estimation (continued)

As at December 31, 2017

Assets
Available for sale financial asset

Total

Liabilities
Net assets attributable to limited partners
Total

As at December 31, 2016

Assets
Available for sale financial asset

Total

Liabilities
Net assets attributable to limited partners
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 000s $ 000s $ 000s $ 000s
- - 149,589 149,589

- - 149,589 149,589

- - 149,495 149,495

- - 149,495 149,495

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 000s $ 000s $ 000s $ 000s
- - 111,253 111,253

- - 111,253 111,253

- - 111,175 111,175

- - 111,175 111,178

The Feeder Partnership held no level 1 or level 2 financial assets and liabilitics in the current year or the prior year. There were no
movements between level 1, 2 and 3 financial assets and liabilities during the year. In the opinion of General Partner, the carrying
values of the financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their fair values. Refer to Note 3B of the Fund
Partnership’s financial statements for the valuation process for level 3 assets.

C. Capital risk management

For the purpose of this section, capital means capital contribution and advance contribution.

The Feeder Partnership’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Feeder Partnership’s ability to continue as a going

CONcern $o as to maximise value and returns for the partners and keep an optimal capital structure.

Since inception the Feeder Partnership was financed by capital contributions from the limited partners and by cash advances from
the Fund Partnership and it did not enter into any borrowings.
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4, Available for sale financinl asset

Movements during the year were as follows:
2017

Cost:

As at January 1, 2017
Additions
As at December 31, 2017

Fair value movement:

As at January 1, 2017
Movement in fair value through profit or loss
As at December 31, 2017

Fair value:

As at December 31, 2017
As at December 31, 2016

Available for sale financial asset include the following:

Unlisted securities:
Global Maritime Investment Fund LP

December 31,
2017

$ 000s

149,589

Total
$ 000s

196,472
16,066

212,538

(85,219)
22,270

(62,949)

149,589
111,253

December 31,
2016
$ 000s

111,253

149,589

111,253

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Feeder Partnership had a 29.48% (December 31, 2016: 29.48%) interest in the Fund
Partnership, based on the percentage of its commitments into the Fund Partnership. The Feeder Partnership does not exercise
significant influence over the Fund Partnership as under clause 9.4 of the Fund Partnership’s LPA, the Operator has full power and
authuiity 1n respeet of the affairs of the Tund Partnership and the management and control of the Fund Partnership’s business shall
rest exclusively with the Operator. Therefore, the Fund Partnership is not accounted for as an associate.

As at December 31, 2017, the Fund Partnership had net assets attributable to limited partners of USD308.53 million {December 31,
2016: USD378.26 million) and the Feeder Partnership’s share of the Fund Partnership’s net assets amounted to USD149.59 million
(December 31, 2016: USD111.25 million). Under the Fund Partnership’s LPA, the Feeder Partnership is liable to pay the debts,
liabilities or obligations of the Fund Partnership limited to the amount of the Feeder Partnership’s committed capital.

The lower share of net assets as compared to the Feeder Partnership’s interest in the Fund Partnership is because the JPMorgan

Chase and Co. affiliates are exempt from paying the General Partner Share.
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LR Limited partners’ contributions and commitments

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the outstanding uncalled committed capital was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2mn7 2016

$ 000s $ 000s

Committed capital 230,025 230,025
Contributions! (230,024) (214,749)
Recallable distribution? 6,284 7,075
Uncalled committed capital 6,285 22,351

!The contributions are less than the committed capital, as a result of historical calls made for the general partner’s share, from which
J.P. Morgan employees are exempt.

?In September 2014, a distribution of USD7.07 million was made to the limited partners. Since this distribution was made during
the investment period, it is subject to recall. As at December 31, 2017, USD0.79 million of the USD7.07 million distributed was
recalled.

In October 2015 a second distribution of USD11.20 million was made to the limited partners. This distribution is not included in
the table above as it is not recallable, due to the fact that it happened after the investment period ended.

The Founder Limited Partner, JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings (Luxembourg) S.4 r.] has a USD100 commitment.
6. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

$ 000s $ 000s

Cash at bank 1 1

7. Related party transactions

The Fund, together with the Fund Partnership’s General Partner, J.P. Morgan G1 (GP) Limited, J.P. Morgan Investment
Management Inc. (the ‘Operator’) JPMorgan Asset Management (UK} Limited (‘Investment Advisor’), J.P. Morgan Chase Bank
N.A. London Branch (the ‘Bank’) and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., Dublin Branch (the ‘Accountant’), are related parties as they
are subsidiaries or affiliates of JPMorgan Chase & Co.

The Fund Partnership is managed by the Operator. Under the terms of the LPA, the Fund Partnership appointed the Operator as a
manager to provide management services to the Fund Partnership.

On July 22, 2014, J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. replaced JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited as Operator to
the Fund Partnership. On the same date JPMorgan Asset Management (UK) Limited was appointed as non-discretionary Investment
Advisor to ].P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. in its capacity as Operator of the Fund Partnership. J.P. Morgan Investment
Management Inc. is incorporated in the United States.

Global Maritime Investment Fund Feeder LLP

Page 24



Notes to the Financial Statements for the Feeder Partnership 2017

7. Related party transactions (continued)

General Partner's Profit Share (“GPPS")

A GPPS is payable to the General Partner, J.P. Morgan G1 (GP Scots) Limited on termination of the Feeder Partnership and is
accrued at the rate of USDI100 for each calendar year. As at December 31, 2017 USD700 (December 31, 2016: USD636 was
outstanding.

At Fund Partnership level, a General Partner’s Share / management fee is payable to the Fund Partnership’s General Partner and is
payable directly by the Fund Partnership and not via the Feeder Partnership.

Founder Limited Partner Profit Share

A Founder Limited Partner Profit Share is payable to the Founder Limited Partner, JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings
{Luxembourg) S.4 1.1, on termination of the Feeder Partnership and is accrued at the rate of USD100 for each calendar year the
Founder Limited Partner remains a limited partner. The charge during the year was USD100 (December 31, 2016: USD100) of
which USD700 (December 31, 2016: USD656) of Founder Limited Partner Profit Share was outstanding.

Investments in / transactions with affiliates

The Feeder Partnership invests in the Fund Partnership, and as at December 31, 2017 the value of the investment was USD149.59
million (December 31, 2016: USD111.25 million) see Note 4. As at December 31, 2017 the Feeder Partnership owed the Fund
Partnership USD0.01 million (December 31, 2016: USDO0.01 million) relating to capital call monies.

8. Accrued expenses
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s
Accrued audit fees i3 11
Accrued professional fees 2 1
15 12
9, Operating expenses
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s
Audit fees 13 10
Professional fees 2 1
15 11
10. Finance costs
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 000s $ 000s
Bank charges 1 1
1 1
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11. Income tax

The Feeder Partnership is tax transparent for the purposes of UK taxation.

12. Changes in working capital

December 31, 2017

Amounts due to affiliates
Accrued expenses

December 31, 2016

Amounts due to affiliates
Accrued expenses

13, Ultimate controlling party

Balance as at Balance as at Change in
December 31, December 31, working
2017 2016 capital
$ 000s % 000s $ 000s
65 52 13
15 12 3
80 64 16
Balance as at Balance as at Change in
December 31, December 31, working
2016 2015 capital
$ 000s $ 000s $ 000s
52 42 10
12 11 1
64 53 11

In the opinion of the directors of the General Partner, there is no ultimate controlling party.

14. Events after the date of the statement of financial position

In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner has evaluated events that have occurred from the statement of financial
position date to the date the financial statements were issued/available to be issued and has determined that no other events besides
those being disclosed above have occurred that would require recognition or additional disclosures in these financial statements.

15, Approval for financial statements

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the General Partner on March 28, 2018.
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